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I\ DEPEN DENI' AUDIl-OR'S I{EPORT

To

THE MEYBERS OF

B-{.LLY IUTE COMPANY LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Stat€ments

Qualified Opinion

\\ e ha\,e audited the accompanving financial statements of N4/s BALLY JUTE CoMPANY

LI\iITED ("the company"), which comPrise the Baiance Sheet as at 31st March 2021, the

statement of Profit and Loss, and the statement of Cash Flow and notes to the financial

statements, For the year ended 31n March 2021. in.luding a summary of significant accounting

polrrre. and olher explanatory in[ormahon.

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the exPlanations Siven to

rls, except for the possible effect of malter described in the basis fot qualified opiniot

sectiofi of our report, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the

Act in the manner so required an.l give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting

principles generally accepted in India, of the state of alfairs of the Company as at March 31'

2021, and Prolit and its cash llow for the year ended on that date'

I Basis for Qualificd Opinion

r) Attcntion is ;nvitlrcl to \i,1. No. I Poi t At)(b) of litalement of significant

Ac(ounling Policies regarding Cratuitl Ptoviltcd ns nn erPenscs in the stntenrent of

l'rofil and i oss in the yenr in which the Pav ent for the samt has been made, rvhich

.onstitu(es a deParture from the Accounting St.ndard 15 - " Emplo,vec tlenefits "

incltrding disclo.surc requircment undcr the said litandard' The inrPact oI th€ \amc in

the [inan(ial Statemcnts is disclosed in Nofr No 24

b) Attention is invited to Note No. 28 of the financial Statements regarding Preparation
of accounts as per Accounting Standard (AS) issued by ICAI inlitead of Ind AS in
view of company made applications for d€listing of shaies to Sto(k Exchange The

impact of the same on the reported financials remains unascertained'
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We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) sPecified under

sectid 143(10) of the ComPanies Act, 2013. OuI responsibilities under those Standards are

further described in the Auditor's ResPonsibilities Ior the Audit of the Finan'ial statements

section of our rePort. We are indePendent of the Company in accordance wjth the Code of

Ethics issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of tndia together with the ethical

requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the Provisions of

the Companies Act, 2013 and ihe Rules there under, and we have lulfilled our other ethical

responsibiljties in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics' We believe that

the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and aPProPriate to provide a basis for our

opinion.

Continuation Sheet

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our Professional judgment' were of most

significance in our audit of the financial statements of the curent Period' These matters werc

aJ,lressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

opinion thereon, and we do not Provide a seParate oPinion on these matters'

Emphasis of Matter

We draw your attention to Note No. 36 to the financial statements which explain the

uncertainties anrl the mzmagement's assessment of the {inancial impact due to the lock-downs

and oiher restrictions and conditions related to the covlD-19 Pandemic situatior! fol which a

definite assessment of the imPact in the subsequent pedod is hiShly dePendent uPon

circumstances as thev evolve.

Our opinion is not modified in resPect of this matter'

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's RePort Thereon

t,
The Company's Board of Directors is resPonsible for the PreParation of the other injormation'

The other information comprises the information included in the Company's Annual Retum

but does not include the Financial Statements and oul Auditol,s IePoIt thereon. oul oPinion

on the Financial statements does not cover the other inJormation and we do not express any

form of assurance conclusion thereon.

ln connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our rcsPonsibility is to read the other

information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is matedally inconsistent

with the Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or

otherwise appears to be mate ally misstated lf, based on the work we have Pe#ormed' we

conclude that there is a mateial misstatement of this other infolmation; we ale Iequiled to

report that fact. We have nothing to repot in this regard
&co
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Continuation She€t

Responsibility of the Management foi the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is resPonsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the

Companies Act,2013 with resPect to the Preparation of these financial statements dlat 81ve a

true and fair view of the financial position and financial performance and cash flow of the

Company in accotdance with the accounting PrinciPles Senerally accepted in tndia' including

the accounting Standards sPecified under section 133 of the Act' This resPonsibility also

includes maintenance of adequate accounhng records in accordance with the provisions of the

Act for safeguarding of the assets of the ComPany and for Preventing and detecting frauds

and other irregularities; selection and aPPlication of aPProP ate imPlementation and

maintenance of accountinB policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and

prudent; and design. imPlementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls'

that were operating effectively for ensu ng the accuracy and completeness of the accounting

records, reievant to the Preparation and Presentation of the financial statement that Sive a true

and fair view and are fuee from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error'

ln prepa ng the financial statements, management is resPonsible for assessing the ComPany's

abilitv to continue as a Soing concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters rclated to going

concem and using the going .oncem basis of accountin8 unless management either intends to

llquidate the ComPany or to cease operations, or has no realistic altemative but to do so'

Those Board of Directorc are also resPonsible for overseeing the ComPany's financial rePorting

Process.

Audito/s Responsibitities for the Audit of the Filancial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a

wholearefreeflommatedalmisstatement,whethelduetofuaudolerror,andtoissuean
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a hiSh level of assurance'

but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accotdance with SAs will always detect a

material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are

considered material if, individua)ly or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be exPected to

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise Prcfessional judgment and maintain

proiessional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. ldentify and assess the dsks of the material misstatement of the financial statement'

whether due to fraud or error, design and Perform audit Procedurcs resPonsive to

those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and aPProPriate to provide a

basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a matenal misstatement resulhng ftom

fraud is higher than for one resulting fuom error, as fraud may involve collusion'

forgery, intentional omissions, misrePresentations, or the overide of internal conhol'

'
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Contlnuatiol Sheet

Obtain an understanding of intemal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to
desiSn audit procedures that are approp ate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion
on whether the company has adequate intemal financial controls system in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of managemenfs use of the going concem basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a matedal uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company,s
ability to continue as a going concem. lf we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modily our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
Auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concem,

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in intemal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with govemance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

I{eport on Other Legal and Regulator.! Requir!'mentr

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report )Order,2016 ("the Order',), issued by the
Central Covemment Of India in terms of sub-section(11) oI Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013, we Bive in the Annexure A, a Statement on the matte$ specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of
the Order, to dle extent applicable.

t

L As re,:luired bv Sectnn 143(3) of the Act, rce report thal

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowJedge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. -

b) Except for the effects of the matter describ€d in the Basis for eualified Opinion
paragraph, in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.
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Continuation Sheet

c) fhe Balance Sheei, the Statement of Irrolit and Loss and the cash flow dealt with by this

Report are in ageement with the books of accounts.

d) Except fo1 the effects of the matter descdbed in the Basis fo! Qualified OPinion

paragaph, in our oplnion, the aforesaid financial statements comPly with the Accounting

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies

(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of the witten representations received from the directors as on 31st March,

2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on

31st March, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 154 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the intemal financial controls over financial rePorting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such confols, refer to our separate RePort

in "Annexure B".

Il. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's RePort in accordance

with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Audltors) Rules, 2014, in our oPinion and to
the best of our information and according to the exPlanations given to us:

a) The Company has disclosed the impact of PendinS litigations which would imPact on

financial position in its financial statements - Rer&/ Nofe.23 to the financial statements;

b) The Company did not have any lon8 term contracts including derivative contracts for

which there were any mateial foreseeable losses;

c) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the lnvestor

Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

III- With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditoi's RePort in accordance

with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended :

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and accordinS to the exPlanations

given to us, the remuneration Paid by the ComPany to its directors du ng the year is in

accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

For J.B.S & C'ompany

Chartered Ac(ountants
Firrn o.:32373'1E

J

ACoa 1; ?O6

C.A. Sudhanshu Sen

Paftner
Membership No.:306354

Iot(^r 

Place: Kolkata
Date:15.06.2021

UDIN: 21306354AA4AF23451
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"ANNF,XURI A" 1'O ] HE INT]EPINDLN'I AUDITORS' ItLI'OIII

The Annexure A referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading 'RePort on Other Legal &

Regulatory Requirements' of our report of even date to the financial statements of NI/s BALLY

JUTE COMPANY LIMITED for the year ended March 31, 2021, we rePot that:

(i) (a) The company is maintaining ProPer records showing Iull Particulars, including

quantitative details and situation of fixed assets;

(b) The Fixed Assets have been physically ve fied by the management and no material

discrepancies were noticed on such ve fication. ln our oPiniorL the Peiodicity of
physical verification is reasonable having re8ard to the size of the comPany and the

nature of its assets.

(c) The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

(ii) As explained to us, the inventories of the comPany have been Physically verilied by the
management at reasonable interual. In our oPinion, the Procedures of Physical ve fication

of inventories followed by the management are reasonable in relation to the size of the

company and nature of its business. The discrepancies noticed on such physical
verification oI invento es as comPare to book records were not mateial.

(lii) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,
Limited Liability partnerships or other Paties coveied in the Register maintained under
section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the Provision of clause 3(iii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon-

(iv) ln our opinion and according to the information and exPlanations given to us, the

Company has neither granted any loan nor made any investment under section 185 and

186 of Companies Act, 2013, Thus clause 3(iv) of the order is not aPPlicable to the

Company.

(\, The company has not accepted any dePosits hom the Public and consequently, the

directives issued by Resewe Bank of India and provisions of Section 73 to Section 76 or

any other rclevant provisions of the ComPanies Act 2013 and the Companies

(Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 with regard to the deposits accePted from the Public
are not applrcable lo the company.

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts relating to matedals, labour and other

items of .ost maintained by the ComPany Pursuant to the rules made by the Central

Govemment for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Companies

Act, 2013 and we are of the opinion that, prima facie, the Prescribed accounts and records

have been made and maintained. However, we have not made a detail€d examination of

the records for determining whether they are accurate or comPlete

(vii) (a) According to the information and exPlanations given to us and on the basis of our

examination of the books of account. the ComPany has generally been regular in

CO
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Continuation Sheet

depositing undisputed statutory dues including lncome-Tax, and any other statutory

dues with the apProPdate authodties

According to the information and explanations Siven to us, no undisputed amounts

payable in respect of the above were in arears as at March 3-1,2021 for a period of

more than six months from the date on when they become payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and *le records of the

Company examined by us, there ale no dues of Income Tax, Goods and Seryice Tax,

Central Sales Tax, West Bengal Value Added Tax and Excise Duty on account of

di'pute: e\cePl the following r

(o) In respect of CST fot the Fitutncial yeat 2014-'15 and 2015-16 imounting to

Rs.'1,25,87 ,000/-

(b) ln rcspect ofl$ VAT fat the Einancial yeat 2005-06 amounting to Rs 7,56,84,000/-

t \c) ]n respecl of ESIC Jot the Financial Year 2009j10 onaunliflS to Rs 38,45,609/-

(viii) Based on our Audit Procedure and on the inJormation and exPlanation given by the

management, we are of the oPinion that the ComPany has not defaulted in repayment of

dues to any Financial Institution and Banks. The ComPany has not issued any

debentures

(ix) The Company did not Iaise any money by the way of initial Public offer or futher Public

offer (including debt instruments) during the year. The term loans taken during the year

were apPlied for the PurPose for whi.h the same has been obtained-

(x) Based upon the audit Procedures pedormed and the inlormation and exPlanations given

by the management, we rePort that no ftaud by the Company or on the comPany by its

officers ot employees has been noticed or rePoted during the year'

l} (xi) According to the information and explanations #ven to us and based on our examination

of the reiords of the ComPany, the Company has paid/ provided for management

remuneration in accordance with the requisite aPprovals mandated by the Provisions of

Section 197 read with Schedule V to the ComPanies Act,2013

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and exPlanations given to us, the

Company is not a Nidhi ComPany Therefore, the rePorting under PamgraPh 3 (xii) of

the Order is not aPPlicable to the Company.

(xiii) Based uPon the audit Procedures Performed and the inlormation and e\Planations grven

by the management, all transactions with the related Parties are in comPliance with

section 177 and 188 of Companies Act,2013 and the details have been disclosed in the

Financial Statements as required by the apPlicable accounting standards-

acq
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Continuation Sheet

(xiv) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the inJormation and explanations Eiven
by the management, the company has not made any preferential allotment or p vate

placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under

review. Accordingly, the rePorting under ParagaPh 3 (xiv) of the Order is not apPlicable

to the Company and hence not commented uPon.

(xv) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and exPlanations given

by the management, the comPany has not entered into any non-cash transactions with

directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the reporting under ParagraPh 3

(xv) of the Order is not aPPlicable to the ComPany and hence not commented uPon.

(xvi) ln our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45 lA of the

Reserve Bank of lndia Act,1934.

For T.B.S & Company
Charfered A((ountants

8 cO firm Registation No.:323734[

7i6.r-c I

) C.A. Sudhanshu Sen

Partner
Membership No.: 306354

Place: Kolkata
Date:15.06.2021

UDIN: 21306354AAAAF23451
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Continuation Sheet

,{nncxurc - B to the Independeni Audilors'Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repoding under Clause (i) of Sub-
se(tion 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the intemal financial controls over financial reporting of I/VSBALLY JUTE
COMPANY LIMITED ("the Company") as oI 31n March, 2021 in conjunction with our audit

of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility f or Intemal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible lor establishing and maintaining intemal financial

controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteia established by the

Company .onsidedng the essential components of intemal control stated in the Cuidance

Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controis over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute

of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design,

implementation and maintenance of ;dequate internal linancial controls that were operating

effectively for ensu ng the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence

to Companv's policies, the safeguarding oI its assets, the prevention and detection of ftauds

and e1:lols, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely

preparation of reliable {inancial informatjon, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls over

financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the

Cuidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the

"Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditin8, issued by ICAI and prescdbed under

section 143(10) of the Companies Act,2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of intemal

financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Intemal Financial Controls and, both issued

by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note

require that w,e comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about whethei adequate internal financial confols over financial

reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all

material respects-

b
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Continuation Sh(}et

Our audit lnvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
intemal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal Iinancial conhols over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of intemal financial controls over financial reportin& assessing the sk that a

matedal weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
intemal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the audito/s
judgment, includin8 the assessment of the sks of mate al misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fuaud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial
rePorting.

Meaning of Internal Finanaial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's intemal financial contol over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting pdnciples. A Company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenan.e of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as

necessary to permit preparation of linancial statements in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (3)

provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company s assets thai could have a material effect on the
finan.ial stalements.

lnherent Lim;tations of Internal linan(ial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial contols over financial reporting,
inclucling the possibility of collusion or improper management ovenide of controls, material
misstatements due to erlor or lraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are

subject to the risk that the intemal financial control over financial reporting may become

inadequate because of changes in conditions. or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may detedorate.

L
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Continuation Sheet

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all matedal respects, an adequate intemal financial

confols system over financial reportinS and such intemal financial controls over financial

reporting were operating elfectively as at 31n March 2021, based on the intemal .ontrol over

financial reporting criteria established by the ComPany considering the essenhal comPonents

of intemal control stated in the Cuidance Note on Audit of lntemal Financial Controls Over

Financial Reporting issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of India

ror.l.B.S & Company
Charlered Accountanl\

b !c o4. Iiirm lteBi stration No.:323734E

&
C.A. Sudhanshu Sen

Partner
Membership No.: 306354

Place: Kolkata
Date: 15.06.2021

UDIN: 21306354AAAAF23451
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(in Rs )

COMPANY LIMITEDBALLY JUTE

No
As at 3lst l1ar.h 2021 Ar at 31st March 2020

129,476,590

45E,240,s79

't 29,076,590

822,s24,938

3r9,751,333

23,338,613
216,444,A0A

't9,220,997

593,554,804

7s7,353,346

130,000,260
't7,436,988

9\;.277,7a9

343,069,946

N9!,31;,39t

558,508,U7

88,4n,229
113,688,081

31,125,979

951,6A1,528

235,664,997

791,395,836
2,22U,772,313 7,9i'8,662,36t

936,667,237

100,000
919,800,042

100,000

985,60A367

241,746,59a
'19,447,972

$,640,632
11,549,747

936,767,n7

1,291,945,276

rco354,956

230,5s2,530

77,+42,594

26,067,700

54,344,539

919,90A,M2

1 ,058,762,319

I)

Shareholders Funds

(a) Share Caprral

(b) Rescrves &Surplus

Notr{lrtent Liabilities
(a) Long-TermBorowings
(b) Defered Tax Liabilines Ner)

Cuent Liabilities
(a) Short rerm Bor.owmss

) Other Current I-,abilities
(d) Short-TermProvisions

Non{rent Assets

(a) ProFlty Plant & Equiprnent
(i) Tugrble Assets

(b) Non{unent Investments

Curent Asset6

(b) Trade Receivables

(c) Cash & Cash Equivalenrs
(d) short-Term Loans and

(e) Other Cunent Assets

Ac.ounting Policies and accompanyin8jote
are integal part ofrhese Finan.i.tstaremenrs 1-39

o.t&ar,t

ct
7

u^

IOR & ON B},I IALF OI BOARI) OF Dt Ir[C'I'OR

DI:_ - 06729238 DIN 0676361.1
o,r"a,lS. .,o21

^gafril)

TRN

(Satyananda Sahoo)

Chief Financial
Offi(er

As per ou Report of this dare annexed

For I.B.S & Company

CA Sudhanshu Sen

M No. 306354

Generat Manag€r (F&A) &

.Purohit) (sanjay

EAlANll S.tri!145 .AT 31Sr \4ARCH 2021

I I.

(1)

(2)

(3)

II,

0l

(2)

9

10

11

12
'13

14

15

2

5

6

7

8

1

1,228,,'t2,573 1.976,1,62,36t



2Q21 2020

2,275,3 t7 ,593 2,849,350,150

2,275,3 \7,593

1,008,252

2,849,354,150

4,8t7,878

2,276,325,A45 2,85il,168,028

'1,506,5$,8n

37,469,303

(296,280,503)

540,631,330

71,198,784

40,517,908

328,t37,5A1

1,683,789,535

(t3,539,745)

641,594,$A

73,482,881

37 342,602
376,718,274

2,228,2211,200 2,799,428,0 /-7

48,497,645 54,739,951

11),Q97 ,6.t5 54,739,951

8,154,695

4,117,616

149,693

54,739,957

9,282,596

4,500,837

11,122,A01

35,675,6.11

13,783,,133

10,956,518

35,675,6n1 40,956,518

INCOME:
Revmue lroh Operarions

trss : Cess Duty
Net Revenue from Operatio.s

II

III TOTAL REVENUE (I+II)

l\

Cost of mate.iak comumed
Puichase oI Srock-in irade
Change in hventodes of finished goods,
work-in,proSress and Stock-in-Tlade
Employee boefits erpenses

Depr.ciation and amortisation elpenses

loI,1I txtE\sL5

Prcfiy(Loss) Beforeexceptional and
exhaordinary items and tax (I[-ry)

Exceptional Itehs\I
\,I]

tx ProIiy(Loss) beforeTar {v - VIII)
\

(1) - CrJEnt Tax
(2) - Defered rax
(3) - LTar for Edlie. Year,s

Piofiy(Loss)for the period from.onrinuin8 operarions (rX _ X)
Profiv(loss) fiom dis(onrinuin8 operarions

for the period (xI + XII)

Eritrs pe! EAuitv Shee facevalue Rs.10/- ead)
(1) Basi.

(2) Diluted

\7

18

'19

20

?1

9

22

2.76

2.76

3-17
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ForI.B.S & Comp.ny
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BALLY IUTE COMPANY LIMITED
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Before ertraordinary irem6 and tax (V,VD



tsALL COMPANY L
CASH FLOI{ S I ATEMINT FOR TTIE YEAR fNDT,I) 31ST \,IAItCH 2O2I

31.03.2021 31.03.2020

44,Q97,645

40,577,96

872,252

77,t9a,784

37,342,602

25,750

1323,446)

54,739,951

160,686,589

24,067,832

i.155,245,4t1,)

706,949,562

165,307,738

(8,09\,962)

49,597,24

36,458,572

28,151,1lt4

(57,385,103) \127,245,388)
7?5,750

(25,7il)

103,302333

l
175,641j24

2,005,3?8

17
,98s,020

NET PROFIT 
'EFORE 

TAX & E(MAORDINARY IITMs,

Depeciation&Ahortisation Exlenses
L,ss on Sale ol Fix€d Assets

Interesr & Finan.e Charges

OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANCES

(lrcrease)/Deoease in Trade & other Reeivables
(lndease)/D{rease in Invenrorieg

Inftase/ (De@ase) in Trade Payables

CASI{ CENERATED FORM OPERANONS

CASH FLOW BEFORE EXTRA O
EXIRA ORDINARY ITEMS
NET CASH FLOT'V OI'ERATINC ACTTVINES AITER EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS (A)

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Expenditure on Properry, Plant md Equipment
ho.eeds 6om Sale or Prope.ty, Planr and Equipmenr.
Lrss onSale of Fired Asserq

Interesl re.erved
NET CASH FLOW FROM IAI\,'ESTING ACTryITIES (B)

NEI INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS IA+B+C)
c4h and cash Equivalents as at the .omencement oI rh. year
CASH AND CASH EQUTVALENTS AS AT THE END OFTHE YEAR

c,\SH 
'IOI15 

FRO\J OfLIIAI'ING ACTIVI I ILS

CASHFLOWTROM FINANCINC ACTIVITIES

Repavment & Proc€eds from borrowin8s
Iayment ol lnreiesr& linance Char8es

NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTrvITIES (C)

UEHALT OTNOARD OT DIRT'IOR

9>"-
) (s.K.

SrEmfi(anr A..ounInBPol e.drda.companJinBnorF

M No.306354

C. M. €&A) & Se.retary C,F.O

are inleS.al part ol these Financial Srar€m.nts 1 39
FiEure in brac ke ts represent ourflows
Ar Per Ou Report of this Drre Alnexe.l,

I

295,763,96n

19,282,596\
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BALLY IUTI: COMPANY LI\,IITEI)

Not€s to the Finan.irl Stitencntas at31sl Mrth,2021

(Iievious Year 13,l]OO,Ol)0 Equitv Shares o' Rs r0/ _ sch)

(Piev,ous Year 12,907,659 Equitr Shards ol Rs 10/- sach)

12,902659 Equity ShaG ol Rs.1O/ ach fully ?aid uP

(P!ryious Year 12,907,659 Equii, Shares of P610/ each)

Equiiy ShaE ol Rs 10/ each

907,659 Equ19 Shares of Rs r0l' ea.h

ol the nuhber of shares ouhtandin8 at rhe 6%iming and at rhe end of rhe PPortina penod

lsued, Subsdibed and tuly Paid up Equitv

sha€ ouhhndins ai tlP teginning o, dE var
d Shars issued dulinA the Year

hsued, Subscibed and luly paid uP Equfv

shaFs ourshndinaattheend ol the year

B) reins/R i shb .ttache d to shrr.s

(i) Theconpanyhasone.lassotequitvshareshavingaParvalueorRslO/ ps share'Each Equity shaEholdd b eliSible

' ' i"* ""," o- "** n o .nd ilavlns sme dshts N b dividsd ln dE event or liquidation or the comPan'&d equitv

shaftholde6willbeenritledtoreiveremaininga$elsollhecomPany,afkrdistihnonofallprefe,en&lanouni6
rr'" aistlUut n w r U in p-po*ion b the nember of equitv sha6 held bv rhe Shareholdd'

C) Ihe nahe ol Sharelrlds holdinE more than 5% shares in the Companv and ihei. numbets are

\ANlL OISH Rf,HOIDERS

1353

350
1353

350

1305

Adrbra CaPital Mark.s Limned

vrw F inan.ial Seiv ices Umiied.

Kdn h. \4ercha ndBc Pvt Ltd

\396,t 57,1?2)

(40,956,513)

155,757,732)

1196,197,?22)

1t12,*7,4?3)

surFlus / (Deri.it)in ihc statemcnt ol

Figurcs in brr.kots r.fle.ts ihe fi8!res df La* Fin,n.ial Y.ar

I
I



-BALLY IUTE COMPANY LIMITED
ro rh Financi sratemenr as ir 31sr MaKh_ 2021

NON.CURRENT LIABITITIES

4, LONG-TERM AORROWNGS

al Canrrr B..l Term l,rn
i) SEnctioned tu.130.00lacs i2 months moiaroriun tbm16 08.13 Epayable in due
amuar Innaltnent of Rs 45 laca for so yeaE and Rs 40 lacs in finat yea!.

LLqSI

Repayable wifiin ndi 12 months disclosed under Orhc Curenr Liabititie

ii) San.tioned Rs 604 O0 tacs 12 monrhs moatorium tmm i8.02.19 rspayabte D Four
amual Indallaent ot Ri 150 las for thm yea6 and Rs 154 lacs in timl year

tupayable within nqi 12 monrtu disctGed ulder Orher Cur.nr Lrabj rihs,

iii) covid-le Lo.n - caura BanI (r)

sanctioned and disbuned Rs 5.20 .roE on 14 05 20 lepayabte in 1B nonthly
innalment ol Rs 29 lac ea.h

Repayablewithin next 12 hontls dG.losed u.dc,Orher Currenr uabilties,

ir) covid,19l-oan - c.mrl BanI (n)

Sanchoned and disbu*ed & 10 13 .rores on 15 02.21 ppayable in 4B in$allnent aftc
l2 months mo&torium tom rh. date oflsi dlsbussne.t

R.payable within next 12 monLhs disciosed u.der ,Orhe. Curmr Liabititi6,

Fors..ued Loar {i) & (ii)

.) Prinary: S{ured by hr?orhrahon of Machineies purchasd from loan and enrre
cuftni a$4 viz Raw Mareriat,Work In plogrff, Srols and Spares, Spoi linished
Goods and Bmk Debrs of tne Company

b) collat.r.l: EMr of hnd wth facrory buitdmashed and codwon in $e name oI
r,{/i SallyJureCompanyLinfied (Dtrdno 6625Measunn8i7.OO5Acre,

,lre'eonrlCu,,i.rr.:q..H, l dnt-,.ad1dSa A t.\!nt "
(d) Corpo'ltc Cu..anre€: Ambi.a ]ure Mills Lrd.

Loan ftom LIC (s{uEd agaiEr rhe Key Man poticy ol Key Manageiiat peennel)

Loan from Rehrd Prnies



BALLY JUTE COMPANY LIMITED
otes to the Financial Statement as at31sr March,2021

Lln Rs l

co

\.,

\

a
a

M.r.h,2021

547,513,137

58,541,667

41,200,000
96,3oo,ooo

52'1,!08,5 t/

l9,aa(r,Ltf.u

10,000,000

600,1'14
't56,753,232

859,111

87,2\4,118
75i rJ8,073,229

1\,837,653

6,875,92t

74,607,343

/36,68b,343

'\4,577,932

9,t93,225

65,744,866

24,172,058

l

17,436,988 1r,125,97!

CURRENT LIABILITIES

5.SHORT TERM DORROWINGS

Working Capital facility from Scheduled Bank (Canara Bank)

(i) Primary, Securcd by hypoth{arton of Current assers viz. Raw Mareiats,
Wo.k-in Progress, Stolcs & Spares, S.mr Finished Soods,Iinished goodsand Book

(ii) collateralrSe.ured by:

(a)Existilg Plant and Machinery

(b)EMTofland with factory buildin8 shed and codwonin the name oI M/s BaUylute
Conpa.y Limited. (Deed no 5525 Measurin8 17005 A.res)
(iij) Pe.sonal Cua.antee ofSh H.C.Kankaria and Sri A.K Kankaria
(iv)Corporate Cuarantee of Ambi.a Jute Mills Lrd.

Curent Matuiries ol Long te.m Debt CanaE Bank (Refer Note No.4)

6, TRADE IAYABLE

Due.lo \4r. ro & sTdU Enrerpriee (Rerer \Jre No.27l

7. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Interest Ac.rued and due on Bonowings

Liabiliries f or Expenses

Advance from Custome.

8. SHORT-TERM PROVISIONS

17,436,988 31,725,979

l-'h from Related Parties
Iran from Othe. Parties

558,508,547
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BALLY JUTE COMPANY LIMITID
otes to th. rnrancial srrrdturntar a131sr Mrr.h.2021 (ln R,)

r0 \o\-cL RRF\l rN\ L51i\,lL\TS

\oi lride lirrstnr.nr (-

100,000 100,000

Name ol th€ Conpany

10,000

00000)

AKK Mercantile lvt Ltd
(Fully paid Equity Shareo

lFi8ur€s in bra.kets refiects th€ fi8lr€s of La3t Financial Year

CURRENTASSE:IS

II.INVENIORIES (As take4v.lued and c.itilied !y the Man.Eemeno

Raw Materiah (Cost or Market Itic€ whlchever is low.r)

work,in-proge$ (At Estimted cosr)

Finished Coods (AtCostor Net realizable value whichever is lo{c.)
Sto.es & spares (At Weighted Avera8e cosr)

12, TRADE RECEIVABLES

Unse.@d (consideed cood)

More thanSir Months lrom the date thcy a.e due lor Paymenr.

13, CASH&CASHEOUIVALENTS

In Clrent Accomts with fthedule Bank

OTHER BANK BALANCES

Fixed Dclosit $ith Bank (Maruiity

Less than 12 months)

14. SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

(Unsecued, Consid4d aoodt

Adr.ncer R..overuble itr (ash or lind or forvalu€ to berec€ived

Ad\ar.cs tu Empl!tees

Advanc.s to Suppliers

Advances to Oth.6

15, OAHER CURRENT ASSETS

Deposits/ Balances with staturory authorities

Advanc€ Income Tax (lnduding Tar d€ducted at souce)

Balan e with Govemment authorities

Interett R{€ivable on Fixed Deposit

244,370,121

769,554,273

554,304,n9
't7)67,L94

284,74A,269

97,984,96

329,597,553

18,024,138

985,600,367

30,613,108

171,133,490

5,422,n7

230,552,530

784,801

1,532,368

17,130,803

826,95Q

2,770,207

14,44,,137

7,t13,562

11,010,914

17,252,404

8,23,756

5,644,512

5,381,361

6,3L4,775

8,727,t12
.13,600,632

7,236,935

77,0n,494

16,457,475

6,4U,679

296,724

7,236,9n5

v.,643,547

't4,944,767

6,485,136

71,t64
j,1,31,1,,39

o
tc

a
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BALLY JUTE COMPANY LIMITED
Nores tothe rinan.ial Statem€ntforth€ year ended 31stMeh,2021 (ln Rs.) (ln Rs )

Mah 2f20

16, REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Sales of ,ute Goods

i.) Domesti.

Salc o, Import Li.ence

Duty Drawback on Erport

Revenue tom operations (Ner)

7. OTHER INCOME

Exchan8e Rate Fluctuation

ll1 (o5l ot Nl]\I Ll(IALS ('ONsUI\IED

Insu.an.e Clalm Received

ClosingStock (Reler Note No.11)

19. CHANGES IN INVENTORIES O!
IINISHED GOODS WORK.IN.PROGRESS

AND STOCK.IN-TRADE

Closing Sto.k in Progess

ClosingStocl FinishedGoods

Opening Slock in Pro8res

OpeninS Stock Finished coods

(lndease)/ Deoease in st@ks

20. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

Salaies,Wag.s, Allowan.es & Bonus

Contribution to Provident & Other tund

Staff Wclfarc Expenses

Director Remuneration

2174,474,079

95,172,476

493,962

7,2i7,t36

2,?78,U9,124

64.415,105

5,619,698

966,227

2,519,150,1i0

136,000

323,446

4t94,432

r,008,252

2U,74a,269

L4%,405,71).
3,225,462

3,644,520

244,37Q,721

351,549,816

1,654,544,761

37,516,7n

184,748,269

169,554,273

554348,779

97,984,996

329,a97,553

127,5ti2,5,19

97,984,996

329,597,553

'109,977,095

3M,065,709

'1r'1,042,804

(296,280,503) (r 3,539,745)

495,887,408

36,783,913

7,817,509

14X500

586,548,619

.15,050,352

9,653,559

342,000

510,63r,330 6.11,59.1,5311

!l'

b c o

t



BALLY JUTE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes tothelinancial Stat€mentforthey€ar€nded31stMar.h,2021 (ln lG.)

$

z

\

71,198,784 71,.152,861

?3,182,331

102,442,5N

144,569,2i2

34,565,387

4,59,343

7,324,690

173243U
4,7-\4,916

2,710,443

4,5?3,726

663,96

330,000

100,000

42,764,964

82,242,977

727,137,743

n,%1,534

2,&4,883
't,946,644

20,619,079

4A?9,209
'1,059,554

7/458,222

305,000

10o000

50,959,349

22. OTHER EXPENSES

Stores & Spares .onsumed

Freight on Covt Supplies

Repans b Building

Repairs to Ma.hinery

Insurance Premiuh

Brokerage & Commission

P.yment to AuditoE

Mis.ellaneous Expenses

21, FINANCE COST



Bally Jute Cohpany Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the yea! ended 31" Marclf 2021.

eqplr4te !n!!r!!!

\t

Ba Ii d in India wirh l;m;ted liabili
b] shares on Sept!!!b!LL19!1

NOIE \tl. 1: Significall{lcountjngPolicies

I.Basis of Accounting:

a) The financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Generally
Accepted Accounting P nciples (CAAP) under the histo cal cost convention on the
accrual basis and on the principles of going concem. The accounting policies are

consistently applied by the Company;

b) The Company has prepared these financial statements to comply in all material respects

with the Accountin8 Standards as prescribed by the Companies (Accounting Standards)
Rules 2006. the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and the Companies Act 1956 (to
the extent applicable);

c) All the Assets and Liabilities have been classified as Cu(ent or Non-Current as per
Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule III of the
Company's Act, 2013. Based on the nature of the products and the time between the
acquisition of the assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents,
the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of curent
non-current classification of Assets and Liabilities;

II.Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conJormity with lndian GAAP requires the
management to make rudgments, estimates and assumptions that aflect the rcpoted
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure oI contingent liabilities on the date of the
financial statements and reported amounts oI revenues afld expenses for the year.

Accounting estlmates could change from pe od to period- Actual results could differ from
those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as Management becomes

aware of changes in circumstances surounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are

reflected in the financiai statements in the period in which changes arc made and if mateial,
their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements-

Ill Property, I'lnnt & |.qujpmlnt:
Property, Plant & Equipment represent a significant proportion of the assets of the
Company. Property, Plant & Equipment is stated at their ofiginal cost less accumulated

depreciation / amortisation. The Cost includes dre purchase cost including impo duties
and non-refundable taxes and any directly attributable costs of bringing a Property, Plant &

r



Bally lute Compan), Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31n March,2021.

Equipment to the Location and Conditions of its intended use. Capital work rn progress is

stated at cost. Cost comp ses of expenditure incu ed in respect of the asset under

development and includes any attributable/allocable cost and other incidental expenses.

IV.Depreciation:
Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment is determined using the Shaight Line Method

on pro-rata basis based on the useful life of the Propety, Plant & EquiPment as Prescibed
under Schedule I of the Companies Act, 2013, except for the Plant & machinery. The

management estimates the useful lile for Plant & Machinery to 25 yeaIs based uPon the

evaluation carried by the technical valuer.

V.Inventories :

Inventory of the Company have been valued as follows

(
a)

b)

c)

d)

Raw Matedal

Woik In Progress

Stores & Spares

Finished Goods

Vl.Foreign Currency Transactions

a) Initial Recogxrition:

t

Foreign cr.rrrency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by aPPlying

exchange rate to the loreign currency amount at the date of the transaction;

b) Foreiga Exchange Differences:

Exchange Differences arising on the date of settlement of monetary items are recognised

as income or expense on the date of settlement. However, the resulted Sain or loss

relating to long term monetary item for financing acquisition of dePreciable caPital

assets, is adjusted to the acquisition cost of such assets and dePreciated over its
remaining useful life.

c) Con\.ersion:

ForeiBn currency monetary items outstanding at the closing of the year, are converted

into India currency at the appropriate rates of exchanges prevailing on the date of the

Balance 5heet.

ca

At Cost or Market Price whichever is lower.

At estimated Cost.

At Weighted Average Cost.

At Lower of Cost or Net realizable value.



Bally lute Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31d March,2021.

VII.Revenue Recogrrition:

i) Sale of Product

a) All Export Sales in foreign curency are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on
the dates when the relevant transactions take place i

{

Dividend income is recognized when the Company,s right to receive dividend is
established which generally coincide as and when received.
lnterest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount
Outstanding and the rate applicable.

iii) Insurance Claim

The Company recognise insurance claims when the recoverability to the claim is
established with a reasonable certainty which generally coincide as and when received.

iv) Export Incentive

The Company has recognised Income ftom Draw Back Duty on Export on Accrual Basis.

VIII.Government Grants
Covemment Crants given for acquisition of specific fixed assets arc deducted ftom the
Sross value of the relevant fixed assets on completion of the works in ardving at the book
value.
Crants received from Government or other authodties towards revenue are recognized
over the pedod in which the related costs are incurred and are deducted from the ;lated
exPenses.

ii) Divid d and Interest ln€ome

IX.!!rvestnlenl

Investment is treated as Non Cunent assets & stated at cost. provision lor diminution in the
value of long term investment is made only if such a decline is other than temporary nature
in the opinion of the management.

X.Eqrrowina Cost

'!

5

a

c

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets
are capitalized as part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying assets is one that necessadly
takes substantial pe od of time to get ready Ior intended use. AII other borrowing costs are
charged to levenue-



{

Bally Jute Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31d March, 2021

Xl.Retireme Benefits

a) Contributions to provident Fund are accounted for on accrual basis.

b) Liability in respect of Gratuity is being provided on cash basis.

c) Liability in respect to leave encashment is being accounted for on accrual basis as
calculated by the Management.

XII.Contingent Liabilitv

Contingent Liabilities are not provided for but dlsclosed by way of notes to the account.

XIII.Taxes On Income

Curent tax is determined on the basis of the amount of tax payable on taxable income for
the year. Defered tax is calculated at current statutory income tax rate and is recognized on
timint differences between taxable income & accounting income that o ginate in one petiod
and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent pe ods. Defened tax assets, subiect
to consideration of prudence, are recognized and callied forward only to the extent that
there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against
which such deferred tax assets can be realized_

XI\'.!rq!istqlti &!!rar!!gs!S1!q

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognised when
there is a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an
outflow of resources.

X\'.!ar11ags !q.1h!4!

{. a) Basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or Loss for the pe od
attributable to equity shareholderc by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year.

b) For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or Loss for the
year attributable to the equity shareholders and weighted average number of share
outstanding if any are adiusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

co



Bally Jute Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31d March, 2021

Additional Notes in relation to Financial Statements

23. Contingent Liability not Provided in resPect of

i. Bank Guarantee given by the ComPany's Bankers amounting to Rs 3,63'97,049/-

(Previous year Rs. 3,55,50,000/-),

ii. Claim not acknowledged by the ComPany for sales tax demand for various financial

year under appeal Rs. 289,39,000/-(P.Y Rs.5,06'65'000 / -).

{

iil. The Company paid Rs 4,54,935/- Ior liability of RS.4,54,935/-(P.Y Rs. 4,54,935) against

Payment of Giatuity Act '1972,111 thet is Pending under aPPeal with the aPPellate

Authodty.

iv. The Company paid an Advance of Rs 7,82,000/- (P.Y. Rs 7,82,000/) against the

demand raised by E.S.I.C of Rs.38,45,609/- (P.Y. Rs 38,45,609/-) for which the

Company made an appeal .

Liability of Gmtuity has been determined on the basis of Actua al valuation as per

revised A915 as on 31.03.2021 Rs.15,28,59,226 / -(P.Y . Rs. 15,19,71,589/-). The same will
be accounted for as and when Paid.

25. Auditors Remuneration consists of:
(Excluding G.S.T.)

26.(a) In the opinion of the Management, all the assets other than Fixed Assets and Non-

Current lnvestments have a value on realization in the ordinary course of business, at least

equal to the amount at whi.h they are stated ln the Balance Sheet- Provision for

depreciation and all known liabilities is adequate and not in excess of what is required'

(b) The Company is yet to receive balance confirmations in respect of certain hade

piyables, other 
'Payables, 

hade receivables, other receivables and advances The

ilar1ug"-".rt do". rtot exPect anv material difference affectin8 the cu ent year's financial

statements due to the same,

3,05,000r,30,000Audit Fees
1,00,0001,011,00uTax Audit Fees

Year 2019-20Year 2020-21I)articulars



tsally lute ComPanY Limjted
Notes to Finan.ial Stafenents for the year ended 31! March,2021

28) The Company has decided voluntary delistlng of equity shaJes of the- company from
' 

Calcutta dtoci Exchange Ltd., as Per the rcsoiution Passed in the Board Meeting held on

13'h March,2020. Acco;dingly, the company has already aPPlied for its delisting under

the SEBI (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulahons 2009 on 6th August,2020' Necessary

upproral i. pendiig to be received from SEBI Since the comPany is under Process of

deiisting hence financial statement has not been PrePared as Per the requirement of Ind-

AS. The impact of the same on the rePorted financials remains unascertained'

29) As required under Accounting Standards -28, the carrying amount of asset does not
' 

"*.""d 
it. recoverable amount, Hence Ioss on account of imPairment is not recognized'

27). A Sum of Rs. 6,00,114/- is payable to Micro & Small EnterPises which are outstanding

as on 31st March,2021. This information as required to be disclosed under the Micro and

Small Enterp ses DeveloPment Acf 2006 has been determined to the extent such Parties

have been identified on the basis of information available with the ComPany'

30) SEGMENT REPORTINC

The entirc operahon of the Company relates to only one segment i e Jute Goods As

such there is no separate rePo able se8ment as defined under Accounting Standard-17

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of lndia on Segment RePorting'

31) RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE:
Name oI the Related Parties and relationshiP with them

c

{

Rs. 36,07 ,775 / -
(P .v . 26,70,105 / -)

Rs.9,37 ,069 / ')
(P.Y.6,33,826 -)P.F.Loan

Bally Jute Mills
Employee's

Provident Fund
Trust

Company
Having

Significant
Influence

Rs.1,42,500/-
(P.Y. 3,42,000)

RemLrner'.rtion

Dire.tor'

Mr. J.K.Kapila
(Manager cumKey Maaage al

Persorurel

Rs. 2\,85,875 / -
(P .y .20,78,000/ -)RemunerationMr.M.R.Yagnik

(President)
Key Managerial

Personnel

Rs. 4,61,00,000/-
(P.Y Rs.

4,49,00,000 / -) .

Rs. 12,00,000/-
(P.Y.3,Q0,000/-l.oan TakenAmbica Capitai

Markets Limited
Control by

Shareholder

Balance
Outstanding as on

liarlsacdon
during the yearl\_ame of the Related

Part)
Nature oI

IransactionsRelationship
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Bally Iute Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31* March,2021.

l2l l,AR\lNC PEII SI lAItF.

Earnings per Share is calculated by dividing the Profit alter Tax, athibutable to the Equity
Share holders by the weighted average number of Equity Shares Outstanding du ng the
year as below.

33 . DEFERRED TAXATION

ln view of Accounting Standards 22 'Accounting for Taxes on Income' issued by the

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India Defered tax Liability for the year amounting
to Rs.41-,17,61-6/ - e.\ 45,00,837/, has been recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

The deferred Tax Assets & Liabilities compdse of tax effect of following timing
differences

l.

t0Nominal Value per share (RS.)

3,56,75 ,64't 4,09,56,518Profit after Taxation (RS.)

Weighted average no. of shares

1.,29,07,659- For Basic E.P.S 1,29,07,659

1.,29 ,07 ,659 1,29,47,649l-or Dilutccl E.P.S

3.1_7Basic Eaming per share (RS.) 2.76

2.76Diluted Eaming per Share (RS.)

5,52,65,7745,68,78,,t30Depreciation as per Income Tax Act

.i,05, r7,90s 3,71,82,602Depreciation as per co s Act

'1,63,60,522 1.,78,83,772Dif f erential depreciation

4't,L7,676 45,00,837Deferred Tax Liability @ 25.168%

1,92,24,997 1.,47,24,160Opening Balance of Defered Tax Liability

41,17,6L6 45,00,837I ess: Deferred Tax Liabilitv

Ctosing Balance of Defenred Tax Liability

c)
S

Paiticulars 37.03.2027 31.03.2020

10

3.17

2020-27

(Rs)

2079-20

(R")
Particulars

2,33,38,613



Bally Jute Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements foi the year ended 31n March,2021

3,1, OUANTATIVE DETAIL

t

t

On 14'h day of November,2ol8 the company has suffered an accidental Ioss due to the
fire. For which the company has sulfered loss to stock and against this the company has
received an insurance claim from United lnsurance Company Limited of Rs.
Rs.32,25,462 on 25'h day of August, 2020 and the same has been adjusted with Cost of

Value of Imported and Indigenous
Raw Matedal & Stores (including
Components & Spare Parts)

consumed

Rnw Mater;al :

Imported 3,66,23,68s 21i.1, 6,61,62,314 3.93%

Indigenous r16,99,30,r92 97.57.i" 1-61 ,76,27 ,221 96.07e;

I'OTAL
150.65,53,877 1000b 168,37,89,53s 1000/o

Sto(es:

Imported

Indigenous 1A ,24,42,500 'r00% 8,22,42,977 100i

TO'I'AL 10,21,12,500 r00% 8,22,42,977 r 00'i

Ii tarning in Foreign Currcncy

9,51,72,176 6,'1,1,15,105

Iii Expenditure in Foreign Currency

Import of Raw Jute 3,66,23,685 6,6L,62,314

Travelling Expenses 3,61,325 .1E,7t,1!2lJ

35.

Raw Material consumed

SI.

No
Particulars o/o

I

Value (RS.)

2020-27

o/o
Value (RS.)

2019-20

Expo of goods calculated on
F.O.B. Basis



l6 COVID-19, a global Pandemic has resulted in a sisniIicant decrease in the economic

J.,riti". u".oJ" tn" *orld including lndia. This has aJfected actrvihes of organizahons

across the econordc ecosystem imiacting eamings prospects of comPanies on Plant,

Property & EquiPments, lnventory' Proiuction activities & current assets including

traie receivables in the sector in which the company oPerates'

The management has carried out the cu ent assessment oI the Potential imPact of

Covid-19 due to second wave on the comPany and is of the view that there is no impact

on the Plant, ProPerty &EquiPments' lnventory' Production achvihes &curent assets

includin8 trade receivables' The comPany s caPital and liquidity Position remain sttong

to sustain its oPerations u"d tn"'" hu'" b"e'1 no chu"g"' to the comPany's intemal

financial conhol durlnB this Pandemic'

However, the impact assessment is a continuous Process and will continue to monitor

for any matedal changes to the future economic conditions'

37. Figures are rounded off to the nearest RuPee'

38. Previous year Iigutes have been rearranged and regrouped wherevet consider necessary

to conform to lhjs year's classfication

39. Note No 1 to 38 forms an integral PaIt of Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account and

have been duly authenticated'

a

L

FOR l.B.S. & ComPanY

Chartered
F.R.N.:32373'1

(o

S. .Purohit
Managcr

Place: Kolkata
oatcd : JS' O6' lo2l

CA Sudhanshu
M No. 306354

Partner

-s.N.sahoo

c.F.o.

& ON tsT:HALT OF BOARD OF DIRI,CI'OII

DIN - 0672923E 06763614

$/S.K. Agan'r'al

G.M. (F&A) &
Sel:retary

BallY rute ComPanY Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 Mar(h' 2021'



    BALLY JUTE COMPANY LIMITED

Regd Offc: 5, SREE CHARAN SARANI, BALLY, HOWRAH- 711201

CIN: L51909WB1982PLC035245

E Mail Id: sanjay.agarwal@kankariagroup.com

BOARD’S REPORT 

To,
The Members,

Your directors have pleasure in presenting their 39th Annual Report on the business and
operations of the company together with the Audited financial statement on standalone
basis for the financial year ended 31st March 2021.

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY OR HIGHLIGHTS       

During  the  year  under  review,  a  brief  break  up  of  the  financial  performance  of  the
Company is given as under: 
                                                                                                                            (Rs in Lacs)

2.   DIVIDEND

In  order  to  conserve  the  resources  of  the  company,  the  Board  of  Directors  of  the
Company have not recommended any dividend for the year ended 31st March, 2021.

3. CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY

There was no Change in the nature of the business of the Company during the year.

4. OPERATIONS  AND STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

Particulars For the year ended
31st March 2021

For the year ended
31st March 2020

Revenue from Operations 22753.17 28493.50

Profit  before  finance  charges,  Tax,
Depreciation/Amortization 

1598.14 1656.05

Less: finance Charges 711.99 734.83

Profit before Tax, Depreciation/Amortization 886.15 921.22

Less: Depreciation 405.18 373.83

Net Profit before Taxation 480.97 547.39

Provision for Taxation 124.22 137.83

Profit/(Loss) after tax 356.75 409.56



During the  year  2020-21 under  review, the company has  achieved  lower  sales  of
Rs.  227.53  crores  vis-a-vis  sales  of  Rs.  284.93  crores  during  the  corresponding
previous year 2019-20 and earned lower profit before tax of Rs. 480.97 lakhs vis-à-vis
profit  before  tax  of  Rs.  547.39 lakhs  in  the  corresponding  previous  year  2019-20
respectively.  The production and sales during the year under review were lower in
volume terms over corresponding previous year in view of lockdown declared by the
Government  to  prevent  spread  of  novel  coronavirus  (COVID-19)  and  subsequent
restrictions imposed by the concerned statutory authorities through-out the year. The
domestic market during the year was robust with government orders.

5. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT
A. INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT

The Central government under Jute Packaging Materials (Compulsory use in packing
commodities)  Act  1987  continued  with  reservation  norms  order  for  compulsory
packaging of foodgrain and sugar. The jute industry commenced its limited operations
during  May 2020 as  per  Government  Guidelines  and  subsequently  operated  with
restrictions throughout the year. Industry saw unprecedented rise in raw jute prices
amidst physical shortage of raw jute owing to adverse climatic conditions.   

End users of jute products have restricted applications in view of increased prices of
finished products. However, despite high prices, the demand from government sector
for  meeting  packaging  needs  during  the  year  was  robust  in  view  of  mandatory
packaging order.

The  second  wave  of  coronavirus  saw  curtailed  operations  in  the  factory  due  to
government restriction to prevent spread of covid-19 pandemic. However, situation
has been improving and normalcy is expected soon.

B. OPPORTUNITIES AND THREADS 

OPPORTUNITIES

 The eco-friendly character of natural fibre jute has always been preferred
by environment conscious end users. 

 The government is sympathetic towards jute considering the livelihood of
workers and farmers associated with the jute sector and the continuance of
mandatory order for meeting packaging requirements seems perennial.

  THREATS



i. The  novel  coronavirus  is  a  threat  to  jute  industry  and  situation  remain
uncertain.  However,  all  possible  preventive measures are being followed to
meet the said challenge.

ii. During lock down large government orders were shifted to plastics in absence
of  stable  supplies  of  jute  bags  for  meeting  food  procurement  needs  of
Government of India. However, the demand is robust for food procurement
programme benefiting Jute Industry.

iii. The Compulsory packaging order issued by government of India under JPM
Act 1987 for compulsory packaging of prescribed percentage of food grains and
sugar  in  jute  packaging  material  is  a  function  of  government  policy  and
procedures. However, the support under JPM Act to the jute industry has been
continuing from years and is likely to continue in the interest of workers and
farmers.

iv. In view of high prices of raw jute export markets for finished products could
be impacted.

v. The fluctuation in crop size is a function of weather conditions coupled with
area under cultivation. Governing the raw material prices. The availability of
raw jute has been an area of concern impacting production. 

C. SEGMENTWISE OR PRODUCTWISE PERFORMANCE

The Company is engaged in single business segment i.e. manufacture and sale of jute
goods. Hence, disclosure requirement in respect of business segment is not applicable
under accounting standard AS- 17 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

D. OUTLOOK : 

The problem of raw jute shortage seems to subside with the arrival of new raw jute crop.
Reports  of  sowing of  new crop for  the jute  year  2021-22 has  been encouraging and
favorable weather conditions could propel significant jump in the crop size. The outlook
of  industry  is  bright  owing  to  jute  being  a  natural  fibre  with  bio-degradable
characteristics  but  the  continuance  of  Covid-19  situation  brings  some  amount  of
uncertainty. The Government policy has been supportive and government orders continue
to remain buoyant in the domestic market. The demand for jute goods is expected to rise
in view of plastic ban around the globe due to ecological concerns

E. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY:

The company has adequate internal checks and balances so as to provide desired alert
signals through installation of ERP system and the same is upgraded on a regular basis.



Moreover, the internal audit mechanism is in place to conduct the routine checks on a
regular basis throughout the year for better control and efficient management.

F. FINANCIAL  PERFORMANCE  WITH  RESPECT  TO  OPERTIONAL
PERFORMANCE: 

The following are the significant areas of financial performance:

( Rs. In lacs )

Particulars 2020-2021 2019-2020

Revenue from Operations (Net)

Cost of Material Consumed 

Finance Cost

Profit After Tax

Inventory

22753.17

15065.53

711.98

356.75

9856.00

28493.50

16837.90

734.83

409.57

7303.55

G. HUMAN RESOURCES

The industrial Relations of the production unit of the Company during the financial year
2020-2021  were  peaceful  and  harmonious.  Supervisory  Development  programs  on
productivity, safety, cost control, communications and human relations are being carried
out as a matter of routine. With high level of Commitment and loyalty by staff members,
the Company is confident to face the challenges of competitive market conditions.

H. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 

Statement in this Management Discussion and Analysis Report, describing Company’s
objective,  projection,  expectation,  estimate  or  prediction  is  based  on  the  prevailing
Industry position and market conditions which may be different from what is envisaged
with regards to future prospects and performance. However, this may undergo changes in
future in view of the volatility involved based on weather condition, Government Policy
relating to Jute Industry, global demand and market trends.

6. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In terms of Regulation  34(3) of the Securities  and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations  and  Disclosure  Requirements)  Regulations,  2015,  a  separate  report  on
corporate  governance  together  with  a  certificate  from



M/s  PRAMOD  AGARWAL  &  CO.,  a  firm  of  practising  company  secretaries,
confirming compliance thereof is given in ANNEXURE-I forming part of this report.

7. ANNUAL RETURN

The  Annual  Return  of  the  Company  is  available  on  the  Company’s  website:
http://www.ballyjute.com/.

8. NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS

Ten Meetings of the Board were held during the financial year ended on 31.03.2021. For
details of the meeting of the Board, please refer to the corporate governance report, which
forms the part of this report.

9. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The details  in respect of internal  financial  control and their adequacy are included in
management discussion & Analysis which form part of this report.

10. PARTICULARS  OF  LOAN,  GUARANTEES  AND  INVESTMENTS  UNDER
SECTION 186

The particulars of loan, investments and guarantees have been disclosed in the financial
statements for the year ended 31st March 2021.

11. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED
PARTIES :

The Company has not entered into any transaction with related parties during the year as
referred to in Section 188(1) of the Companies Act 2013. Disclosures as required under
Accounting  Standard  18 have been disclosed in  the financial  statements for  the  year
ended 31st March 2021. Since the Company has not extended any loan or advance to its
associates, holding or firms/ Companies in which director are interested, no disclosure is
required as per point A (2) to Schedule V to the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. 

12. AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Notes on accounts referred to the auditors' report are self-explanatory and do not call
for any further explanation.

13. MATERIAL CHANGES AFFECTING   THE FINANCIAL POSITION   OF THE
COMPANY

There  is  no material  change in  the  financial  position  of  the  Company subsequent  to
balance sheet date which will affect the Company.

14. ENVIORNMENT,  ENERGY  CONSERVATION,  TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO

http://www.ballyjute.com/


As required by the Companies Act 2013, the relevant data pertaining to the conservation
of energy etc. are given in ANNEXURE -2 of this report. 

15. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

In compliance with the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company has put in
place  Risk  Minimization  and  Assessment  Procedures.  In  order  to  effectively  and
efficiently  manage  risk  and  address  challenges,  the  company  has  formulated  Risk
Management Policy.

The  combination  of  policies  and  procedures  adequately  addresses  the  various  risks
associated with your Company’s businesses.

16. DIRECTORS 

During the year under review, Mr. Jitendra Kumar Kapila (DIN - 00320521) Director cum
Manager has sudden demise on 27th September,  2020. So, in place of him Mr. Shyam
Sundar Singh (DIN - 06763614) was appointed as an Additional Non-Executive Director
from 05th March,  2021  &  Mr.  Shashi  Prakash  Purohit  (PAN  -  ALNPP6887E)  being
appointed  as  a  Manager  of  the  Company  from 05th March,  2021 as  per  provision  of
Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015.

Mrs. Nibedita Majumder, (holding DIN-07168214) shall retire by rotation at the ensuing
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

The  information  about  the  director  seeking  re-appointment  as  required  by  Regulation
36(3) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings have been
given in the notice convening the ensuing annual general meeting

17. DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

All the independent directors have declared that they meet the criteria of independence
laid down in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 16(1)(b)
and Regulation 25 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In the opinion of the Board of Directors, there has been no change in the circumstances
which may affect their status as independent directors of the Company and the Board of
Directors are satisfied of the integrity,  expertise, and experience of all the independent
directors  on  the  Board  of  Directors.  All  the  independent  directors  have  registered
themselves on INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS DATABANK.



18. KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the year under review, Mr. Jitendra Kumar Kapila (DIN - 00320521) Director cum
Manager has sudden demise on 27th September,  2020. So, in place of him Mr. Shashi
Prakash Purohit (PAN - ALNPP6887E) being appointed as a Manager of the Company
from 05th March,  2021  as  per  provision  of  Companies  Act,  2013  and  SEBI  (LODR)
Regulation, 2015.

All the other Key Managerial Personnel continue to hold their offices.

19. PUBLIC  DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted deposits from public within the meaning of Section 73 of
the Companies  Act,  2013 read with Rules  framed there under.  Further,  no amount  on
account of principal or interest on deposits from public was outstanding as on the date of
the balance sheet.

20. SECRETARIAL AUDIT 

The Board of Directors have appointed M/s Rakesh Agarwal & Co., a firm of practising
company secretaries (COP 9014) to carry out the Secretarial Audit under the provisions of
Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013. The report from the secretarial auditor in Form
MR-3 for the financial  year  2020-21 does not contain any qualification,  reservation or
adverse  remarks.  The  secretarial  audit  report  is  enclosed  as  ANNEXURE-III to  this
report. 

21. ANNUAL SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE 

In compliance to SEBI circular no. CIR/CFD/CMD1/27/2019 dated 08th February, 2019
Annual  Secretarial  Compliance  was  conducted  by  M/s  S.  Dalmiya  &  Associates.,
practicing company secretary.  The Annual Secretarial Compliance Report in prescribed
format under Regulation 24A of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations,  2015 is  given  as  ANNEXURE- IV which  forms  the  part  of  this  report.
The observations made in the report are self explanatory.

Further, the Company has filed the Annual Secretarial  Compliance Report for the year
ended 31st March, 2021 issued by the secretarial auditor with CSE Limited on 15th May,
2021.

22. CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

In compliance to SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment)
2018 dated 09th May, 2018, Certificate from Non-Disqualification of Directors was given
by M/s S.  Dalmiya  & Associates.,  practicing  company secretary.  The Certificate  from
Non-Disqualification  of  Directors  in  prescribed  format  under  Regulation  34  of  SEBI
(Listing  Obligations  and  Disclosure  Requirements)  Regulations  is  given  as
ANNEXURE- V which forms the part of this report. The observations made in the report
are self explanatory.



23. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) POLICY

During  the  year  ended  31st  March,  2021,  your  Company  has  spent  Rs.663,916/-  on
various  CSR  activities  as  per  laid  down  under  schedule  VII  of  section  135  of  the
Companies  Act,  2013.  The  annual  report  on  CSR activities,  in  terms  of  Rule  8  of
Companies  (Corporate  Social  Responsibility  Policy)  Rules,  2014,  is  provided  in
ANNEXURE-VI forming part of this report.  During the year under review, our CSR
programs were oriented toward various activities  for hunger,  Poverty & Malnutrition,
Promotion education to children and other various allied activities. The Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy of the Company as adopted by the Board of Directors is available
on Company’s website (http://www.ballyjute.com/). The composition of CSR Committee
is disclosed in the report on corporate governance forming part of this report.

24. AUDIT COMMITTEE

The details  pertaining to composition of audit committee are included in the corporate
governance reports which form the part of this report.

25. FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMMES FOR BOARD MEMBERS

The Board members are provided with necessary documents, reports and internal policies
to  enable  them  to  familiarize  with  the  Company’s  procedures  and  policies.  Periodic
presentations are made at  the Board and Board Committee Meetings,  on business and
performance updates of the Company.

26. CRITERIA  FOR  DETERMINING  QUALIFICATIONS,  POSITIVE
ATTRIBUTES AND INDEPENDENCE OF A DIRECTOR: 

The  Nomination  and  Remuneration  Committee  has  Formulated  the  criteria  for
determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of Directors in terms of
provisions of section 178(3) of the Companies Act 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations,
2015.

Nomination  and remuneration  committee  (NRC) identify persons who are qualified  to
become  directors  in  accordance  with  the  criteria  laid  down.  The  NRC  review  the
composition and diversity of Board, keeping in view the requirement of Companies Act,
2013 and SEBI( LODR) Regulations, 2015 and recommend to the Board appointment/
reappointment  of  eligible  candidates  including  their  terms  of  appointment  and
remuneration.  

27. ANNUAL  EVALUATION  OF  BOARD  PERFORMANCE  AND
PERFORMANCE OF ITS COMMITTEES AND DIRECTORS:

Nomination  and  Remuneration  Committee  of  the  Board  has  devised  the  criteria  for
evaluation  of the independent  directors,  the Board and its  committees.  The Board has
carried  out  annual  evaluation  of  its  own performance,  and that  of  its  committees  and
individual directors.

http://www.ballyjute.com/


            
28. REMUNERATION POLICY 

Details of the Remuneration Policy are given in the Corporate Governance Report. 

29. DISCLOSURE ON ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower policy, to provide a formal mechanism to the
Directors  and  employees  to  report  their  concern  about  unethical  behavior,  actual  or
suspected  fraud or  violation  of  the  Company’s  code of  conduct  or  ethics  policy.  The
policy provide for adequate safeguards against victimization of employees who avail of
the mechanism and also provide for direct access to the chairman of the Audit Committee.
It  is  affirmed that  no personnel of the Company has been denied access to the Audit
Committee.  The  Whistle  blower  policy  is  hosted  on  company’s  website
(www.ballyjute.com)

30. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

                     Particulars of employees and the ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median
employee’s remuneration and other details in terms of section 197 of the Companies Act
2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 from part of this Report. However, in terms of section 136(1) of
the Companies Act 2013 the Report and Accounts are being sent to the members and
others  entitled  thereto,  excluding  these  statements.  The  Annexure  are  available  for
inspection by the Members  at  the Registered Office of the Company during working
hours  on  working  days  for  a  period  of  21  days  before  the  ensuing  Annual  General
Meeting. However, a copy of the statement shall be made available to any members on
demand.     

31. DISCLOSURES  UNDER  SEXUAL  HARASSMENT  OF  WOMEN  AT
WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

                    The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harrasement at workplace and has adopted a
policy on prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual harrasement at workplace, in
line with the provisions of the sexual harrasement of women at workplace (preventation,
prohibition  and  redressal)  Act,  2013  and  Rules  thereunder.  An  Internal  Compliants
Committee,  Known as  the  prevention  of  sexual  harassement  (POSH) committee  was
constituted  to  inquire  into  the  complaints  of  sexual  harrasement  &  recommend
appropriate  action.  Further,  the  Company  has  not  received  any  complaint  of  sexual
harrasement during financial year 2020-2021.        

32. STATUTORY AUDITORS

As per the provisions of section 139 read with section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013
and Rules made there under M/s J.B.S & Co., Chartered Accountants, (FRN: 323734E)
was appointed as statutory auditors of the company for a period of 5 years starting from
1st April, 2017 to 31st March, 2022.

http://www.ballyjute.com/


Further,  consequent  to  amendment  of  Companies  (Audit  and  Auditors)  Rules,  2018
appointment of Auditors need not require ratification at every Annual General Meeting
during the period from 1st April, 2017 to 31st March, 2022.

33. INTERNAL AUDITORS

The Company has appointed M/s Srimal Jain & Co. as the Internal Auditors in the year in
2018 for undefined period.

34. COST AUDITORS

                     As per directives of the Central Government and in pursuance to the provision of
section 148 of  the  Companies  Act,  2013 read with rules  framed there under,  the
Company  is  required  to  carry  out  an  audit  of  Cost  Records  maintained  by  the
Company in respect of each financial year. As per recommendation of chairman of
Audit Committee, M/s B.G Chowdhury & Co., Cost Accountants, has been appointed
as  cost  Auditors  to  conduct  the  audit  of  Cost  Records  of  our  Company  for  the
Financial  Year  2021-22.  The  remuneration  proposed  to  be  paid  to  them,
recommended for ratification by the Audit  Committee,  require ratification by the
shareholders  of  the  Company.  In  view  of  this,  your  ratification  for  payment  of
remuneration to cost auditors is being sought at the ensuing AGM. 

35. SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES

There is no company which has become or ceased to be the Company’s subsidiary, joint
venture  or  associate  company  during  the  year.  The  Company  does  not  have  any
subsidiary, joint venture or associate company as on 31st March, 2021.

36. DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies  Act 2013, it  is
hereby stated to the best of our knowledge and belief that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March,
2021, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures;

b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently
and made judgments  and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2021
and of the profit /loss of the Company for that period;



c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records  in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013
for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting  fraud
and other irregularities;

d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e) The  directors  had  devised  proper  systems  to  ensure  compliance  with  the
provisions  of  all  applicable  laws  and  that  such  systems  were  adequate  and
operating effectively. 

f) The directors  had  laid  down internal  financial  controls  to  be  followed  by the
company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating
effectively. While affirming this, your directors confirm the following:

i. Systems have been laid down to ensure that the transactions in the company
are executed in accordance with management’s authorization in adherence to
policies and procedures adopted by the Company.

ii. The existing assets of the Company are verified at reasonable intervals and
appropriate  actions are taken with respect to differences,  if  any.  Access to
assets is permitted only in accordance with management’s authorization and
no assets of the company are allowed to be used for personal purposes, except
in accordance with terms of employment or only if specifically authorized. 

iii. Systems and procedures exist to maintain checks and balances and to prevent
and detect frauds and errors.

iv. Proper  frameworks  exist  to  ensure  that  all  transactions  are  recorded  to
facilitate  timely  and  effective  preparation  of  financial  statements  in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
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                                                                                                   (Chairman)

                                                                           (06729238)

Place-Bally                            For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Date – 20.07.2021 



ANNEXURE -II TO THE BOARD’S REPORT
 

[Pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 8(3) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

i. Steps taken or impact on Conservation of energy : 

In the past few years, the Company has tried to improve energy efficiency
significantly by various measures. Steps taken to conserve energy include:

1. At its plant, the Company has carried out various modifications in layout
to optimize energy consumption and reduce losses.

2. Energy efficient  motors  are being installed  in order to optimize use of
power.

3.  In  its  plant  and offices,  the Company has  replaced conventional  light
fixtures with energy efficient fixtures such as LED lights and tubes. 

4. Optimization of machine speed, particularly in Spinning Frames and S4A
Looms.

5. Maintenance of all machines, including boilers and compressors to make
them energy efficient and minimize losses.  

ii. Steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy :
The Company is making maximum use of natural lighting during day time
and  gradually  inducting  safelux  system  to  get  the  factory  system
illuminated.

iii. Capital  Investment  on  Energy  Conservation  Equipment:  The
Company has been making investment on continuous basis for the purpose
of energy conservation.

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

i. Efforts made towards Technology Absorption :

Efforts  towards  technology  absorption  included  continued  efforts  for
process improvements and installation of upgraded plant & machinery to
improve the efficiency, productivity and profitability of the Company.

ii. Benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product
development or import substitution : 

Improved  productivity  and  automation  process.  Cost  reduction  has
however, been partly offset by the increase in cost of other input. 



iii. In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years
reckoned from the beginning of the financial year) :

1. The  details  of  technology  imported:  The  Company  has  not
imported any technology during the last three financial years.

2. Year of import : Not Applicable

3. Whether the technology has been fully absorbed: Not Applicable

4. If  not  fully  absorbed,  areas  where  absorption  has  not  taken
place, and the reasons thereof : Not Applicable 

iv. Expenditure incurred on Research and Development : Nil

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS /OUTGO  

Earnings Rs 9,51,72,476

Outgo Rs 3,69,85,010
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CERTIFICATE FROM PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARIES REGARDING COMPLIANCE OF 

CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

 
To 

The Members of 
BALLY JUTE COMPANY LIMITED 

 
I   have  examined  the   compliance  of  conditions  of   Corporate  Governance   by  Bally  Jute 
Company  Limited  for  the year ended on March 31, 2021, as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27 
and  clauses  (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and para  C, D and E of  Schedule V of the Securities 
and  Exchange  Board  of India  (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015. 
 
The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. 
My examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the company 
for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor 
an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the company. 
 
In my opinion and to the best of our information and according to explanation given to us, we 
certify that the company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as 
stipulated in the above mentioned SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 / Listing Agreements, to the 
extent applicable to the Company during the year under report. 
 
We further state such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the 
affairs of the company. 

 
 
Place:   Kolkata                                                                                For Pramod Agarwal & Co. 

Date :   08.07.2021                                                                                Company Secretaries 

 

 

                                                                                                                          Pramod Agarwal 

                                                                                                                              (Proprietor) 

                                                                                                                          C. P. No. : 4193 
UDIN : F005895C000596782  

 

 

 

 

Pramod 
Agarwal

Digitally signed by Pramod Agarwal 
DN: c=IN, o=Personal, postalCode=712248, 
st=West Bengal, 
serialNumber=38615f058c0eb99f8041768a36bf3
e919a0f5fca9006d3fb2f6ec39bbfe46450, 
cn=Pramod Agarwal 
Date: 2021.07.08 17:20:32 +05'30'
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FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021 

Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment 

and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014) 

To, 
The Members, 

BALLY JUTE COMPANY LIMITED 

(CIN: L51909WB1982PLC035245) 
5, SREE CHARAN SARANI, BALLY, 

HOWRAH- 711201, WEST BENGAL 

have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 

adherence to good corporate governance practices by BALLY JUTE COMPANY LIMITED 

(hereinafter called the "Company'). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me 

a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my 

opinion thereon. 

Based on my verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed 

and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, 

its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby 

report that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year 

ended on 31st March, 2021 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that 

the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the 

manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
generally maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021 according to the provisions of: 

) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (SCRA') and the rules made thereunder (NA); 
(ii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder (NA): Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investments, Overseas Direct Investments and External Commercial Borrowing as per the information provided by the Company, its officers and the documents made available to us the following are applicable during the year: a)Foreign Exchange Management (Exports of Goods and Services) Regulations, 2000. b)Foreign Exchange Management (Manner of Receipts and Payments) Regulations, 2000 Civ) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act): a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

ny Secs 
Cretany 



b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015; 
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; (Company itself is not registered as Registrar to an Issue or Share Transfer Agent) 

. 

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011- The Company has made disclosures in terms of regulation 
30(1) and 30(2) 

e. 

However following are not applicable to the Company during the reporting period: 

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2018; 

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) 

Regulations, 2014; 

C. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue and Listing of Debt Securities) 

Regulations, 2008; 

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 
e. Other Acts- As per the information provided by the Company, its officers and authorize 

representative there is no such other act /s applicable specifically to the Company. 

"NA signifies not applicable during the reporting period. 

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses/Regulations of the following: 

) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. (Secretarial 

Standards 1 and 2 are applicable). 

(i) SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (entered into by 

the Company with Calcutta Stock Exchange Ltd). 

During the period under review the Company has substantially complied with the provisions of the 

Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 

I further report that based on the information provided by the Company, its ofticers and its 

authorized representatives during the conduct of the audit, and also on the review of the Quarterly 

Compliance Report by respective department heads/Company Secretary/CEO taken on record by 
the Board of Directors of the Company, in my opinion, adequate system and processes and control 

mechanism exist in the company to monitor and to ensure the compliance with applicable general 
laws such as Labour Law and Environmental Laws. 

ORAWA ESHA 
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I further report, that the compliance by the company of the applicable financial laws, like direct 
and indirect tax laws, has not been reviewed in this audit since the same have been subject to 

review by statutory financial auditor and other designated professionals. 

I further report, that as per the information provided by management, the Board of Directors of 

the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 

Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that 

took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of 

the Act. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board/Committee Meetings, agenda and 

detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking 
and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for 

meaningful participation at the meeting. 
Majority decision is carried through. None of the members has given dissenting view as per 

minutesS. 

Ifurther report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company that commensurate 

with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable 

laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

I further report that during the audit period the Company has no such specific events / actions 

having a major bearing on the company's affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, 

regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. 

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as 'Annexure-A' and forms an 

integral part of the report. 

For Rakesh Agrawal & Co. 

(Practicing Company Secretaries) 

GRAWA 
FCS:8792 

CP:9014 

m 

TProp: Rakesh Agrawal) 

M No- F8792 
Place: Kolkata 

Dany Se CP No-9014 
Date: 20.07.2021 
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ANNEXURE - A" to the Secretarial Audit Report 

To, 
The Members, 
BALLY JUTE COMPANY LIMITED 

(CIN: L51909WB1982PLC035245) 
5, SREE CHARAN SARANI, BALLY, 

HOWRAH-711201, WEST BENGAL 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. Our 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

2. We have followed the Audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was 

done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We believe 

that the process and practices we followed, provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of 

Accounts of the Company. 
4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of 

laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations and 

standards is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to the 

verification of procedures on test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 

nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 

Company.

For Rakesh Agrawal & Co. 

(Practicing Company Secretaries) 
AGRA 

FCS 8792 
CP:9014 

panyS YIn Prac 

Secretar 
(Prop: Rakesh Agrawal) 

Place: Kolkata M No- F8792 

Date: 20.07.2021 CP No-9014 

UDIN: FO08792C000660894 
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S. Dalmiya & Associates CS Company Secretaries 

SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT OF 
BALLY JUTE COMPANY LIMITED 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021 

I. Ms. S. Dalmiya & Associates, Practising Company Secretaries have examined: 

(a) all the documents and records made available to me and explanation provided by M/s. Bally Jute Company

Limited ("the listed entity"), 

) the filings/ submissions made by the listed entity to the stock exchanges, 
(c) website of the listed entity. 
(d) any other document filing, as may be relevant, which has been relied upon to make this certification. 

for the year ended 31s March, 2021 ("Review Period") in respect of compliance with the provisions of.

(a) the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ("SEBI Act") and the Regulations, circulars,

guidelines issued thereunder; and 
(b) the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ("SCRA"), rules made thereunder and the Regulations. 

circulars. guidelines issued thereunder by the Securities and Exchange Board of India ("SEBI);

The specific Regulations, whose provisions and the circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder, have been 

examined include

(a) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations

2015 
(b) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018; 
(Not attracted during the year under review)

(C) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations.

2011
d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buybackof Securities) Regulations, 2018:(Not attracted during 
the year under review)
(e) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014: (Not 

attracted during the year under review)
(f) Securities and Exchange Board of India (lIssue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008: (Not

applicable)
(g) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non Convertible and Redeemable Preference

Shares) Regulations,2013; (Not applicable)
(h) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
(i) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 

1993 

kata 

76, Ashutosh Mukherjee Road, Kolkata- 700 025, Ph: +91-9874316346

Email: sdalmiya.associates@gmail.com, Website: www.sdalmiyaassociates.com 



and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder;

and based on the above examination, hereby report that, during the Review Period:

(al The listed entity has complied with the provISions of the above Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder, except in respect of matters specified below:

Requirement | DeviationsCompliance
(Regulations/ circulars / guidelines

including specific clause)

Sr. No. Observations/ Remarks of the 
Practicing Company Secretary 

NIL NIL NIL NIL 

(b) The listed entity has maintained proper records under the provisions of the above Regulations and circulars/ 
guidelines issued thereunder insofar as it appears from my examination of those records.

(c) The following are the details of actions taken against the listed entity/ its promoters/ directors/ material 
subsidiaries either by SEBI or by Stock Exchanges (including under the Standard Operating Procedures issued

by SEBI through various circulars) under the aforesaid Acts/ Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued
thereunder: 

Observations of the Observations made in the Actions
Practicing Company secretarial 

Sr. No. Comments of the 

compliance taken by the Practicing Company 
the report

ended... (The years are to | if any 
be mentioned) 

Secretary in for the year listed entity, Secretary on the 

previous reports actions taken by the 

listed entity 

NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 

For S. Dalmiya & Associates 

Company Secretaries 

e 
Shweta DaBmlya

Proprietor 
Membership No. 38153 

retarie
y SeC 0an 

COP No. 19603

Place: Kolkata

Date: 12.05.2021 

UDIN: A038153C000282311 



S. Dalniya & Associates PS Company Secretaries

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS(pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)i) of tire SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

To, 
The Members of 
Bally Jute Company Limited 
5, Sree Charan Sarani, 

Bally, Howrah- 711201 

T have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Bally Jute Company Limited having CIN L51909WB1982PLC035245 and having registered office at 5 Sree Charan Sarani BallyHoWrah-711201 (hereinafter referred to as 'the Company'), produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal (www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by theCompany & its officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2021 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Kolkata or any such other Statutory Authority.

Date of appointment in Com pany 
04/05/2015
05/03/2021
26/02/2020
08/11/2013

DIN Name of Director 
Nibedita Majumder 
Shyam SundarSingh
Dipankar Sarkar
Pradip Debnath

Sr. No. 
07168214
06763614
08708069 

067292338 4. 

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment/ continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

ForS. Dalmiya & Associates 

CthpanySgretaries 
meo 

Shweta Dalmiya
Proprietor 
Membership No. 38153 any9 cretare

COP No. 19603 

Place: Kolkata

Date:12.05.2021 
UDIN: A038153C000282463 

76, Ashutosh Mukherjee Road, Kolkata- 700 025, Ph: +91-9874316346 
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ANNEXURE -VI TO THE BOARD’S REPORT

REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES
(Pursuant to section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the act”) read will rule 8 of Companies (CSR) Rules, 2014)

1. A  brief  outline  of  the  company’s  CSR  policy,  including  overview  of  projects  or
programmes  proposed  to  be  undertaken.  We  believe  in  a  responsible  shared  value
approach to augment industrial growth together with actions directed to create prosperity
among all our stakeholders, employees and the community at large. During the year, our
CSR programs were oriented towards various activities such as Eradicating hunger, poverty
& malnutrition.  

2. The  Composition  of  the  CSR  Committee:  The  Company  has   a  CSR  committee
comprising of  following members:-

 Mr. Pradip Debnath (Independent Non-Executive Director) - Chairman.

 Mr. Dipankar Sarkar (Independent Non-Executive Director) - Member.

 Mrs.Nibedita Majumdar  (Non-Executive Director) -Member.

 Mr. Sanjay Kr. Agarwal (Secretary).

3. Provide  the  web-link  where  composition  of  CSR committee,  CSR Policy  and CSR
projects  approved  by  the  Board  are  disclosed  on  the  website  of  the  Company  :
http://www.ballyjute.com 

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of
sub-rule (3) of Rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules,
2014, if applicable (attach the report) : Not Applicable.

           

5. Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years for the purpose of
computation of CSR: Rs. 3,29,19,623/-

6. Prescribed  CSR  Expenditure  (two  percent  of  the  amount  as  in  item  3  above)  :
Rs.6,58,392/-

7. Details of CSR spent for the financial year : Rs. 6,63,916/-

a.    Total amount spent for the financial year: Rs. 6,63,916/-**

** Note: - Company spent in CSR more than 2% i.e. 6,63,916/- during the current financial year
& it is in excess of Rs. 5,524/- (Rs. 6,63,916 - Rs. 6,58,392). Therefore, whole amount to be
considered as an expense and it is not carry forward to the next year.

http://www.ballyjute.com/


b.    Amount unspent : NIL

c.    Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year : As per CSR Policy. 

8. In case the company has failed to spend the two percent of the average net profit of the
last three financial years or any part thereof, the Company shall provide the reasons
for not spending the amount in its Board report. N.A.

9. A  responsibility  statement  of  the  CSR  committee  that  the  implementation  and
monitoring of  CSR policy,  is  in  compliance  with CSR objectives  and policy  of  the
Company.

We hereby declare that implementation and monitoring of the CSR policy are in compliance
with CSR objectives and policy of the Company.

Date:- 20.07.2021 Chairman of CSR Committee
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